
 1 
 2 

 3 
SOMERS PLANNING BOARD MINUTES 4 

AUGUST 12, 2015 5 
 6 
ROLL: 7 
 8 
PLANNING BOARD 9 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Acting Chairman McNamara, Mrs. DeLucia, 10 

Ms. Gerbino, Mr. Goldenberg, Ms. Gannon,   11 
and Ms. Corning  12 

 13 
ABSENT:    Chairman Currie 14 
 15 
ALSO PRESENT:  Consultant Town Engineer Joseph Barbagallo 16 

Director of Planning Syrette Dym 17 
Planning Board Town Attorney Joseph Eriole   18 

     Planning Board Secretary Marilyn Murphy 19 
     20 
The meeting commenced at 7:30 p.m. Planning Board Secretary Marilyn 21 
Murphy called the roll and noted that a required quorum of four members 22 
was present in order to conduct the business of the public.   23 
 24 
Mr. McNamara explained that Chairman Currie was not able to attend this 25 
meeting and requested him to be Acting Chair in his place.  26 
 27 
APPROVAL OF DRAFT MINUTES AND DVD OF THE PLANNING 28 
BOARD MEETING HELD ON JULY 8, 2015  29 
 30 
Acting Chairman McNamara noted that Planning Board Secretary Marilyn 31 
Murphy prepared and submitted for the Board’s consideration approval of 32 

   Telephone 
(914) 277-5366 

 
FAX 

(914) 277-4093 

TOWN HOUSE  
335 ROUTE 202 

SOMERS, NY 10589 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 

          John Currie, Chairman 
   Jan Corning 

  Fedora DeLucia 
                Vicky Gannon 
                Nancy Gerbino 
                Eugene Goldenberg 

  Dennis McNamara 
                 



PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                            AUGUST 12, 2015                                    
  

 2 

the draft minutes and DVD of the Planning Board meeting held on July 8, 1 
2015.   2 
 3 
The Acting Chair asked if there were any comments or corrections from the 4 
Board on the draft minutes and DVD and no one replied.  5 
 6 
On motion by Mr. Goldenberg, seconded by Ms. Gannon, and unanimously 7 
carried, the draft minutes and DVD of the July 8, 2015 Planning Board 8 
meeting were approved. 9 
 10 
Acting Chairman McNamara stated that the text of the approved minutes is 11 
available on the Town’s website www.somersny.com and is also available 12 
for public review at the Planning & Engineering office at the Town House. 13 
The approved DVD is available for public viewing at the Somers Public 14 
Library.   15 
 16 
CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC HEARING 17 
 18 
GRANITE POINTE FINAL SUBDIVISION 19 
 20 
Acting Chairman McNamara said that this is the application for Final 21 
Subdivision Approval, Wetland, Steep Slopes and Stormwater 22 
Management and Erosion and Sediment Control Permits.   He mentioned 23 
that the property is located on the east side of Route 118/202, adjacent to 24 
the Amawalk Reservoir and is in an R-40 Zoning District. He said that the 25 
property is owned by Suelain Realty, LLC for the development of 23 lots in 26 
a Cluster Subdivision.   27 
 28 
Acting Chair McNamara asked the applicant’s representative to update the 29 
Board on the application. 30 
 31 
Timothy Allen, the applicant’s engineer, said that there are 23 lots on a little 32 
less than 29 acres.  He mentioned that the applicant is requesting Final 33 
Subdivision Approval, Steep Slopes, Tree Removal and Stormwater 34 
Management and Erosion and Sediment Control Permits.  Engineer Allen 35 
noted that the wetland application was not referenced in the Public Hearing 36 
Notice and a Public Hearing should be scheduled on the wetland 37 
application.  Engineer Allen said that the Public Hearing has been 38 
continued and the public has spoken and there is no new information, 39 
therefore, he asked that the Public Hearing be closed on the Final 40 

http://www.somersny.com/


PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                            AUGUST 12, 2015                                    
  

 3 

Subdivision Approval, Steep Slopes, Tree Removal and the Stormwater 1 
Management and Erosion and Sediment Control Permits.  He mentioned 2 
that the plan has been around for 15 years.   3 
   4 
Acting Chair McNamara said that figures on the Pollutant Loading Analysis 5 
(PLA) have to be worked on.   6 
 7 
Engineer Allen noted that he worked with Consulting Town Engineer 8 
Barbagallo on the Pollutant Loading Analysis and the numbers have gotten 9 
better.  He explained that the increase could amount to a cup of coffee.   10 
 11 
Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo stated that the new information and 12 
the updated Pollutant Loading Analysis (PLA) gives the Board sufficient 13 
information to schedule a Public Hearing on the wetland application. He 14 
noted that he is working with Engineer Allen on a Planting Plan that 15 
represents the mitigation. Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo explained 16 
that there is a wet area totaling 880 square feet on the site.   He mentioned 17 
that the previous Findings Statement that was done in 1998 said that the 18 
wetland was identified as a small pocket of water and is below the 19 
threshold of being regulated by the Planning Board.   Consultant Town 20 
Engineer Barbagallo said that the Army Corps of Engineers may have 21 
jurisdiction.  He noted that typically the Board would ask for an updated 22 
wetland delineation but the Board has the authority to waive that 23 
requirement. He said that in this instance we are talking about buffer and 24 
his recommendation is that the wetland does not have to be delineated.   25 
Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo indicated that a significant amount of 26 
rubbish and dumping debris was observed during a field investigation in 27 
June 2015. He stated that by removing the debris and putting in wetland 28 
plantings he is satisfied that the Board can schedule the Public Hearing as 29 
the application is complete.     30 
 31 
Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo indicated that he received 32 
calculations on the Pollutant Loading Analysis and the methodology is 33 
correct and appropriate.  He mentioned that the delineation of what is 34 
residential in the pre-development impacts and the comparison of pre and 35 
post has to be discussed.  Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo indicated 36 
that final calculations can be done in 10 days.   37 
Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo said that the runoff from the 38 
Peekskill Turnpike is running into the reservoir and he suggested swales 39 



PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                            AUGUST 12, 2015                                    
  

 4 

and additional stormwater treatment that would reduce the runoff to the 1 
greatest extent practicable.   2 
 3 
Engineer Allen said that Mickey Oliver, previous Town Historian, asked that 4 
area be left pristine except for the road crossing, but if there has to be 5 
treatment at the base of that area that will be done but he rather leave that 6 
area pristine.            7 
 8 
Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo explained why he is looking at a 9 
Pollutant Loading Analysis (PLA) as it is not mandated by any law.  He 10 
mentioned that when the Board was reviewing the Final Supplemental 11 
Environmental Impact Statement (FSEIS) in reference to the contamination 12 
the Board received a letter from the Watershed Inspector General (WIG) 13 
that raised the issue of PLA as a SEQRA issue under the Clean Water Act.  14 
He noted that the WIG prefers the simple method for the PLA.  Consultant 15 
Town Engineer Barbagallo said that as long as the Board and the applicant 16 
mitigate to the maximum extent within the context of the layout of the 17 
subdivision there is a right to the number of lots.   18 
 19 
Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo stated that there is no requirement 20 
to send the PLA to the WIG for his approval.           21 
 22 
Acting Chair McNamara said that interested parties were demanding that 23 
the Public Hearing be cancelled tonight because they did not have enough 24 
time to review the PLA.  He noted that if the final calculations can be done 25 
in 10 days he would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing as the 26 
findings will be part of the resolution.  Acting Chair McNamara said that the 27 
Public Hearing on the wetland and a Resolution of Approval can be done 28 
concurrently at the next meeting.   29 
 30 
Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo said that the final calculations can 31 
be done within 10 days. 32 
 33 
Mr. Goldenberg said that he is concerned because a professional  34 
asked for more time to review the PLA as Bibbo Associates may have used 35 
an incorrect coefficient in his opinion,   36 
 37 
 38 



PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                            AUGUST 12, 2015                                    
  

 5 

Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo said that he just explained the 1 
Simple Method that was used for the PLA so he is not sure what the 2 
professional is referring to.   3 
 4 
Mr. Goldenberg referred to a letter from the NYC Department of 5 
Environmental Protection (DEP) dated July 30, 2015 saying that the 6 
application for the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) is 7 
incomplete.  The review of your application will not commence until the 8 
DEP receives the necessary information and determines that the 9 
application is complete. 10 
 11 
Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo explained that the typical procedure 12 
from the DEP when an application is deemed incomplete is to enumerate 13 
those items that are not complete.  He said that only one item is listed as 14 
incomplete and that is the field testing and the DEP will not witness the field 15 
testing in the contaminated areas until the cleanup work is finished.     16 
 17 
Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo explained that some of the 18 
Conditions in the Resolution will be to remediate the site and another will 19 
be that the DEP has to sign off on the project. He stressed that the risk is 20 
not on the Planning Board but on the applicant.     21 
 22 
Mr. Goldenberg said that the Board is approving the same thing as last 23 
time.  He opined that the public is not being protected because there is no 24 
cleanup.   25 
 26 
Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo said that he wants to be on record 27 
that he disagrees with Mr. Goldenberg’s statement that the public is not 28 
being protected. He reminded Mr. Goldenberg that there is no obligation or 29 
Code requirement, no law that the PLA has to be done at this time.  He 30 
stated that SEQRA is finished.  Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo said 31 
that the Board is reviewing the PLA because they are listening to the public 32 
and are working with the applicant to address that issue. 33 
 34 
Engineer Allen interjected that the applicant is going above and beyond of 35 
what is required.  He mentioned that the wetland is not a Town regulated 36 
wetland but he is willing for the Board to schedule a Public Hearing on the 37 
wetland.   38 
 39 



PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                            AUGUST 12, 2015                                    
  

 6 

Ms. Gerbino said that a letter was received in reference to the PLA 1 
requesting time to review the calculations and that is what the Board has 2 
been discussing.  3 
 4 
Ms. Gannon said that Mr. Goldenberg said that conditions are unimportant 5 
and not relevant and her understanding is that all conditions in a resolution 6 
must be met.  She explained that if those conditions are not met the Chair 7 
will not sign the Plat.   8 
 9 
Mr. Goldenberg asked if there was an Article 78 brought by the public to 10 
rescind Final Subdivision Approval.   11 
 12 
Engineer Allen said that there was no Article 78 on Granite Pointe. 13 
 14 
Mrs. DeLucia said that she was on the Planning Board during the review of 15 
Granite Pointe and there was no Article 78 on the Granite Pointe project.   16 
She stated that when the project is cleaned up it will be ready for 17 
development.  She stressed that no one will put the public at risk.   18 
 19 
Ms. Gannon explained that a condition in the Resolution will be that the 20 
cleanup of the property be completed before the Plat can be signed as that 21 
is the process the Board is working on now. 22 
 23 
Ms. Corning said that the Board stated that the PLA is not required and 24 
now we are back to the contamination which the Board agrees has to be 25 
cleaned up.  She said that the action the Board has to take is to focus on 26 
what has to be done and decide if the Board will approve or deny the 27 
subdivision.   28 
 29 
Mrs. DeLucia read from the Fact Sheet by the NYS Department of 30 
Environmental Conservation (DEC) dated April 2010 addressed to Granite 31 
Pointe Subdivision.  She said that the title is “Remedial Cleanup Action to 32 
begin at Brownfield site.”   She said that when the cleanup is done the 33 
developer can begin the subdivision.   34 
 35 
Planning Board Town Attorney Eriole advised that the only legal 36 
mechanism to protect the public is what has been discussed; first adopt the 37 
Resolution that approves the project subject to the applicant meeting 38 
various conditions and if they don’t there is no project.   39 
. 40 



PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                            AUGUST 12, 2015                                    
  

 7 

Mr. Goldenberg said that it is his understanding that the reason the 1 
applicant applied for the Brownfield Program is because of the fact that 2 
without it they cannot do anything.  He said that he can say from 3 
experience that when approvals are given by certain Boards and are left to 4 
certain people working in Town that certain conditions are called “met” 5 
and they have not been “met”. Mr. Goldenberg opined that approval should 6 
not be given until everything is done the right way.  He commented that it is 7 
too early to grant approval to a subdivision on property that is still 8 
contaminated. 9 
 10 
Mrs. DeLucia mentioned that she was Chairman for seven years and she 11 
never left something unfinished and she challenged Mr. Goldenberg to find 12 
anything that he would not agree with.    13 
 14 
Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo said that the reason that things 15 
stopped the last time was because there was new information about a 16 
potential contamination.  He noted that the Board has heard from the public 17 
and no new information has come up to warrant the Board to rescind 18 
anything or reopen anything.                19 
 20 
Mrs. DeLucia reminded that Board and the public that Paul Muessig, senior 21 
scientist, gave the Board his educated opinion and now the public wants to 22 
bring in their expert to give his opinion and she is concerned that the two 23 
experts may have to debate their opinions. 24 
 25 
Acting Chair McNamara said that he is tired of hearing that the applicant is 26 
sandbagging the Board and the Planning Board is incompetent and didn’t 27 
know about something that they should have.  He stated that Mr. 28 
Goldenberg is making accusations that he cannot substantiate and is not 29 
based on fact.    30 
 31 
Acting Chair McNamara asked if anyone from the public would like to 32 
speak on the application and no one replied. 33 
 34 
Acting Chair McNamara asked the Board if the Public Hearing can be 35 
closed as the Consultant Town Engineer and the applicant’s engineer have 36 
agreed to finalize the numbers for the PLA so that interested parties can 37 
analyze the numbers. He said that a Resolution can be drafted to coincide 38 
with the Public Hearing on the wetland application, 39 
 40 



PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                            AUGUST 12, 2015                                    
  

 8 

Director of Planning Dym said that she is not sure that a Resolution can be 1 
ready for the next meeting. 2 
 3 
Engineer Allen indicated that he wants to work with staff on the Resolution 4 
and agreed that it may not be ready for the next meeting. 5 
 6 
Mrs. DeLucia asked Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo if he agrees that 7 
the Public Hearing should be closed. 8 
 9 
Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo said that the only issue that is open 10 
is the PLA but it is not a requirement.  He said that he would like to work 11 
with the public’s professional on the PLA and keep the written comments 12 
open for 14 days.  He said that he feels the Public Hearing can be closed.    13 
 14 
On motion by Ms. Gannon, seconded by Ms. Corning, and carried (Mr. 15 
Goldenberg voting nay), the Board moved to close the Public Hearing on 16 
Final Subdivision Approval, Steep Slopes Tree Removal and Stormwater 17 
Management and Erosion and Sediment Control Permits for Granite 18 
Pointe, with the expectation that staff will work on the Resolution and to 19 
keep written comments open for 14 days.  Ms. Gannon said that the reason 20 
she makes this motion is because the PLA is not a State requirement and 21 
no new information has been submitted.    22 
 23 
Mr. Goldenberg said that his reason for not closing the Public Hearing is 24 
because when the public asks for time for their consultants to have time to 25 
review the project it should be granted. He mentioned that the Board 26 
received a letter from David Clouser, P.E., L.S., saying that a preliminary 27 
review of the PLA reveals that Bibbo Associate may have used an incorrect 28 
coefficient to calculate phosphorous runoff emanating from a forested area. 29 
 30 
Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo explained that Bibbo Associates in 31 
response to his memo submitted revised PLA calculations using the Simple 32 
Method. 33 
 34 
 35 
SCHEDULE PUBLIC HEARING 36 
 37 
GRANITE POINTE FINAL SUBDIVISION WETLAND PERMIT 38 
 39 



PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                            AUGUST 12, 2015                                    
  

 9 

Acting Chairman McNamara said that the application is to restore the 1 
wetland into a proposed project stormwater basin. 2 
 3 
On motion by Ms. Corning, seconded by Ms. Gerbino, and unanimously 4 
carried, the Board moved to schedule a Public Hearing on the Wetland 5 
Permit for Granite Pointe for Wednesday, September 9, 2015 at 7:30 P.M. 6 
at the Somers Town House. 7 
 8 
Acting Chair McNamara indicated that there is no sign requirement in the 9 
Town Code for a wetland application. 10 
 11 
Engineer Allen said that he will review the Code to make sure that a sign is 12 
not required for a wetland permit. 13 
 14 
Mrs. DeLucia asked that Engineer Allen put in writing that a sign is not 15 
required. 16 
 17 
PROJECT REVIEW 18 
 19 
HIDDEN MEADOW AT SOMERS   [TM: 15.07-1-6] 20 
 21 
Acting Chairman McNamara explained that this is an application for 22 
Preliminary Subdivision Approval, Site Plan Approval, Steep Slopes, 23 
Wetland and Stormwater Management and Erosion and Sediment Control 24 
Permits relative to the application of Multifamily Residence Baldwin Place 25 
District (MFR-BP) for the proposed development of 53 units of housing, 26 
sixteen of which would be affordable, within 45 townhouse buildings on 45 27 
fee simple lots plus one for lands to be owned in common by a 28 
Homeowners Association.   29 
 30 
The Acting Chair asked the applicant’s representative to update the Board 31 
on the project. 32 
 33 
Richard Williams, the applicant’s engineer, said that this application has not 34 
been before the Board since January when the Town Board adopted the 35 
Negative Declaration. He mentioned that the application has been before 36 
the Town Board who in April extended the Town Water and Sewer District 37 
and they also petitioned Westchester County for the inclusion of the 38 
property in the County Sewer District.  Engineer Williams reminded the 39 
Board that when you extend a water and sewer district in the Town of 40 



PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                            AUGUST 12, 2015                                    
  

 10 

Somers the water district is a Town expansion only but the sewer district is 1 
a Town expansion for which the Town Board has to petition the County to 2 
include Hidden Meadow.  He said a Public Hearing was held on July 9, 3 
2015 and the overlay zone was applied to the site.  Engineer Williams 4 
explained that because this project started with the application of an 5 
overlay zone there is a special procedure set up in the Code.  He 6 
mentioned that in 2013 an application was made to the Town Board for the 7 
application of the overlay zone and a Negative Declaration (Neg Dec) was 8 
adopted and the SEQRA process started.  He explained that once the 9 
overlay zone is applied the application comes to the Planning Board for 10 
Subdivision and Site Plan Approval.  Engineer Williams said that it is 11 
customary to do the Neg Dec and the Preliminary Subdivision Approval at 12 
the same time.  He said that because this is a unique process the Neg Dec 13 
was issued by the Town Board and now he is requesting a Resolution for 14 
Preliminary Subdivision Approval.  He explained that after all the conditions 15 
of Preliminary Subdivision Approval are met the applicant will come back to 16 
the Planning Board for Final Subdivision Approval and Site Plan Approval.  17 
 18 
Engineer Williams said that since he was last before the Board the Site 19 
Plan has not changed but the next step in the process is to proceed with 20 
Preliminary Subdivision Approval.  He mentioned that he provided the 21 
updated Highway Improvement Plan that shows a turn lane into the site 22 
and the widening of Route 6. Engineer Williams noted that this application 23 
has conceptual approval from the Department of Transportation (DOT) on 24 
the Highway Improvement Plan that was issued in February 2015. 25 
 26 
Engineer Williams stated that he would like to move the application into the 27 
Preliminary Approval process.  He said that the goal because of funding is 28 
to have building permits by the end of the year.  Engineer Williams asked 29 
that a draft resolution be ready for the next Planning Board meeting.    30 
 31 
Director of Planning Dym said that she will try to have a draft resolution for 32 
the next meeting but it is difficult because of vacations and holidays. She 33 
mentioned that the map has to be updated.       34 
 35 
Ms. Gannon suggested that the draft Resolution could be reviewed at the 36 
second meeting in September in order to give more time for staff to work on 37 
the project.    38 
 39 



PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                            AUGUST 12, 2015                                    
  

 11 

Acting Chair McNamara suggested that Hidden Meadow be scheduled for 1 
the September 9, 2015 Planning Board meeting and the Board can decide 2 
at that time if another meeting has to be scheduled.   3 
 4 
DISCUSSION 5 
 6 
TOWN OF CARMEL LEAD AGENCY 7 
 8 
BALDWIN SUBDIVISION 9 
 10 
Acting Chairman McNamara said that the Baldwin Subdivision is located 11 
north of the intersection of Route 6 and Baldwin Place Road.  He noted that 12 
the proposed 2 lot commercial subdivision is on 12.93 acres in the 13 
Commercial/Business Park (C/BP) Zoning District.   14 
 15 
ROUTE 6 RETAIL, located north of intersection of Route 6 and Baldwin 16 
Place Road.  Proposed commercial building on proposed 3.2 acres on Lot 17 
2 of the Baldwin Subdivision. 18 
 19 
Acting Chair McNamara said that the Town of Somers as an interested 20 
party may want to comment on the Town of Carmel’s activity.  He asked if 21 
there were any comments from the Board members. 22 
 23 
Ms. Gerbino said that she is concerned that stormwater from 24 
Mahopac/Carmel may drain into Somers and ultimately the Total Maximum 25 
Daily Load (TMDL) watershed.  She also was concerned about the traffic 26 
impacts.    27 
 28 
Consultant Town Engineer Barbagallo interjected that the Planning Board 29 
has been implementing a Stormwater Management Plan to be developed 30 
to mitigate pollutant loading from the post development condition to pre-31 
developed levels.   He commented that the Town of Somers has been 32 
implementing this approach during SEQR analysis and reviews based on 33 
input from the NYS Watershed Inspector General (WIG). Consultant Town 34 
Engineer Barbagallo said that all traffic impact should be mitigated.     35 
 36 
Mr. Goldenberg suggested that Board members who have concerns in 37 
reference to the environmental impacts of these applications state their 38 
concerns to the Director of Planning and she will send a letter stating those 39 
concerns to the Town of Carmel Planning Board.  40 



PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                            AUGUST 12, 2015                                    
  

 12 

Planning Board Town Attorney Eriole said that the Somers Planning Board 1 
is an interested agency but does not have permitting authority but the 2 
Board is an outside agency with sufficient interest to be heard.  He noted 3 
that any legitimate issue that is raised the Town Board of Carmel will have 4 
an obligation to consider.   5 
 6 
Acting Chair McNamara said that there was a consensus of the Board that 7 
they did not have a problem with the Town of Carmel Planning Board being 8 
lead agency on the projects but the Board has some interests that they 9 
would like addressed.   10 
 11 
Mrs. DeLucia said that landscaping along Route 6 be enhanced beyond 12 
what is shown on the plans and that signage be aesthetically pleasing and 13 
not add to visual clutter along Route 6.   14 
 15 
PCSB MAHOPAC BRANCH, located north of intersection of Route 6 and 16 
Baldwin Place Road.  Proposed retail bank establishment on proposed 9.8. 17 
acres on Lot 1 of the Baldwin Subdivision. 18 
 19 
Acting Chair McNamara was surprised that the bank is proposed on 9.8 20 
acres. 21 
 22 
Rich Williams, the applicant’s engineer, said that a 13 acre property is 23 
being subdivided into two lots.  He indicated that there are wetlands and 24 
environmental constraints on the property. He said that the reason there is 25 
a 9.8 acre parcel and a 3 acre parcel is how the lots break apart. Engineer 26 
Williams noted that Putnam County Savings Bank is relocating across the 27 
street.      28 
 29 
There being no further business, on motion by Acting Chair McNamara, 30 
seconded by Ms. Gannon, and unanimously carried, the meeting adjourned 31 
at 9:00 P.M.  The Chair announced that the next Planning Board meeting 32 
will be held on Wednesday, September 9, 2015 at 7:30 P.M. at the Somers 33 
Town House.  34 
 35 
       Respectfully submitted, 36 
                        37 
 38 
       Marilyn Murphy 39 
       Planning Board Secretary 40 



PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                            AUGUST 12, 2015                                    
  

 13 

 1 
  2 


	Telephone
	PLANNING BOARD


